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03 October 2016
Response to the proposed WET rebate tightened eligibility criteria

The September 2016 implementation paper identifies the shortcomings of the current WET rebate model:
• the ability to create artificial business structures to access the rebate and claim multiple rebates. 

• the conversion of uncommercial grapes into bulk wine for the sole purpose of claiming the rebate, affecting the pricing of both grapes and wine. 

As a small producer of premium wine my business strongly supports tightening eligibility to remove access to the rebate through these constructs which run contrary to the rebate’s purpose.

As a corporate taxpayer (and as a personal taxpayer) I condemn any form of rorting in that it diverts taxpayer funds to unintended recipients, undermining the efficiency of government services and support.
However, I am a small producer in regional Australia and the proposed new criteria for eligible producer would exclude me and many others like me, creating a financial disadvantage likely to render my business unviable. Allow me to describe my circumstances:
I came to Australia in 2002 under the skilled immigration program. I had a passion for wine and was determined to produce wine of a quality to match the fine wine and iconic producers of the world. I had enough money to put myself through the three-year Wine Science BAppSc program at Charles Sturt University (graduating as dux in 2005) and to start small-scale commercial wine production in 2007 based in the Barossa Valley.
I did not have enough money to buy established vineyard or to buy land and construct and equip a winery (the latter being a poor use of capital in any respect). However, it’s a common “negociant” model for producers, large and small alike, in Australia and overseas, to buy grapes from growers, experienced in their craft and in their site, and this relationship is clearly of benefit to both, especially if long-term relationships are established.
At this time I worked as winemaker for a medium sized contract winery, Rocland Estate (now Moppa Vintners), which critically enabled me to use their facilities to make my wine and provide essential income in the first years as I developed a market presence. When my first 2007 wines (from two vineyards that remain core to my range) were bottled and released in 2009 they were submitted to James Halliday for inclusion in his 2010 Wine Companion: “He fast-tracked through my Wine Companion, receiving five (black) stars in 2010, being named as one of the best new wineries, gaining five red stars in 2012 and effortlessly living up to that rating ever since.” James Halliday, Weekend Australian Magazine, 18 June 2016.
My business now supports me entirely, together with a vintage casual and an administration assistant in the near future. Sales are principally domestic at this time, together with exports to the UK’s most established fine wine retailer Berry Bros and Rudd. I continue to pay winery owners to use their wineries (at this time Murray Street Vineyards in the Barossa Valley). I continue to buy grapes from vineyard owner/operators (a total of nine at vintage 2016) and to own those grapes through the winemaking process and into the final trademarked bottle.
I do not own a winery, vineyard or cellar door. Ownership of a winery would be a poor use of capital and runs contrary to sustainable models for the industry, and operation of a vineyard or cellar door does not fit my business model in that I am self-distributed and have dedicated my time outside vintage to that part of the sales chain.

I believe a significant proportion of new, small and emerging producers enter the industry in this way and with the motivation to produce high quality wine. Their passion, integrity and personality is fundamental to the evolution of the premium wine segment in Australia. It is a widely held view that growing Australia’s wine export market depends on developing the reputation of Australia’s premium wine segment.
I don’t have sufficient understanding of the loopholes that have allowed business structures to make multiple rebate claims, but the proposed criteria for eligible producer would create a barrier to entry for many of the producers that the WET rebate was established to encourage. 

I would urge eligibility that focusses on ownership of the grapes throughout the winemaking process through to packaged and trademarked product, not on the ownership or leasing of asset.
Yours faithfully,
Michael Hall on behalf of Michael Hall Wines
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